# **Minutes of Planning and Development Committee**

Meeting Date:	Thursday, 31 August 2017 starting at 6.30pm
Present:	Councillor A Brown (Chairman)

Councillors:

S Atkinson	J Rogerson
I Brown	I Sayers
S Brunskill	R Sherras
P Dowson	R Swarbrick
M French	N Walsh
S Hind	D Taylor

In attendance: Director of Community Services, Head of Planning Services, Head of Legal and Democratic Services, Senior Planning Officer and Principal Planning Officer.

Also in attendance: Councillors K Hind and P Elms.

#### 186 APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence from the meeting were submitted on behalf of Councillors S Knox and G Geldard.

#### 187 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 27 July 2017 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

188 DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND NON-PECUNIARY INTEREST

Councillor P Dowson declared an interest in planning application 3/2017/0323 and Councillor J Rogerson declared an interest in planning application 3/2017/0317.

189 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There was no public participation.

190 PLANNING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990:

(Councillor Rogerson declared an interest in the next item of business and left the meeting)

1. APPLICATION NO: 3/2017/0317/P GRID REF: SD 361763 437185

## DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

OUTLINE PLANNING APPLICATION FOR EMPLOYMENT FLOORSPACE (USE CLASSES B1, B2 AND B8) AND ASSOCIATED ACCESS, CAR PARKING, LANDSCAPING AND SERVICES INFRASTRUCTURE WITH ALL MATTERS RESERVED EXCEPT FOR ACCESS AT LAND SOUTH OF BLACKBURN ROAD, HOTHERSALL, PR3 2YY APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

- 1. Application(s) for approval of all of the outstanding reserved matters related to the consent hereby approved must be made not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission and the development must be begun not later than whichever is the later of the following dates.
  - (a) The expiration of three years from the date of this permission; or
  - (b) The expiration of two years from the final approval of the reserved matters or, in the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last such matter to be approved.

REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. Detailed plans indicating the layout, scale and appearance of the buildings, facing materials, landscaping and boundary treatment and parking and manoeuvring arrangements for vehicles (called the "reserved matters") shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before development commences.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority should be satisfied as to the details and because the application was made for outline planning permission and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy Adopted Version.

3. The details in respect of the submission of any reserved matters shall be in strict accordance with the design principles set out in the Design and Access Statement (Rev 1.01) dated 20 June 2017 and the parameters shown on 5220-P02B Parameters Plan received 14 August 2017.

REASON: To ensure the development accords with the agreed general principles in relation to design and green infrastructure in accordance with Policies DMG1, DME1, DME3, and Key Statements EN2 and EN4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

4. Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, buildings on the site shall not exceed 7m in height.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the site in the interests of local visual amenity and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

5. Applications for the approval of reserved matters shall be accompanied by a noise assessment to ensure that the rating level (LAeq,T) of noise emitted from the site shall not exceed the background noise level (LA90,T) by more than 0 dB at any time when measured at the boundary of the nearest noise sensitive premises. The assessment shall have been made in accordance with the current version of British Standard 4142 and the Planning Practice Guidance and confirmation of the findings of the assessment shall have been submitted to, and agreed in writing by, the Local Planning Authority and shall be adhered to thereafter.

If the assessment indicates that noise from the development is likely to affect neighbouring residential or commercial properties then a detailed scheme of noise mitigation measures shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the first occupation of the units.

The noise mitigation measures shall be designed so that nuisance will not be caused to the occupiers of neighbouring noise sensitive premises by noise from the development.

REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is not detrimental to the amenity of the surrounding area by reason of undue noise emission and/or unacceptable disturbance in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

6. No part of the development hereby granted consent shall be commenced until details of all artificial lighting has been submitted, the details of which shall include the location, intensity of lighting, type of application and direction.

The details shall include the light mitigation measures designed to reduce the impact of artificial lighting on protected species and species of conservation concern.

The external lighting shall be installed precisely in accordance with the approved details and thereby retained as such unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In order to reduce the harmful impact of artificial lighting on the natural foraging/roosting/nesting behaviour of a protected species and species of conservation concern and to minimise the possibility of inconvenience to nearby residents in compliance with Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy Adopted Version.

7. The working hours within the premises shall be restricted to the period from 0800 to 1800 hours on Mondays to Fridays and 0900 to 1300 on Saturdays

only. No work shall take place in the buildings on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

REASON: In order to protect the residential amenities of the occupiers of the adjacent properties and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy (Adopted Version).

8. No externally sited fixed plant, machinery or equipment (including ventilation and extraction equipment); or internally sited fixed plant, machinery and equipment (including ventilation and extraction equipment) which communicates directly to the exterior of a building used in connection with the development shall be fitted without first obtaining planning permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the surrounding area due to noise from such equipment, in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

9. No goods, plant or materials shall be deposited or stored on the site other than in the buildings shown on the approved plans.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the site in the interests of local visual amenity to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

10. There shall not at any time whatsoever be any working outside of the buildings, or any noise generating work inside the buildings with the doors open.

REASON: In the interest of safeguarding residential amenity and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy Proposed Main Modifications (May 2014).

11. There shall be no deliveries or collections to/from the new units hereby approved other than between 07:00-19:00 Monday to Friday, between 08:00-13:00 Saturday and not at all on Sunday and bank Holidays.

REASON: In order to protect the amenity of the surrounding area and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy (Adopted Version).

12. There shall be no movements of HGV's or forklift trucks, used in connection with the new units hereby approved, within the open areas of the site other than between 07:00-19:00 Monday to Friday, between 08:00-13:00 Saturday and not at all on Sunday and bank Holidays.

REASON: In order to prevent nuisance arising in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

13. No goods, plant or material shall be displayed for sale in the open on the site.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the site in the interests of local visual amenity and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

14. No development shall commence until details of the design, based on sustainable drainage principles, and implementation of an appropriate surface water sustainable drainage scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

Those details shall include, as a minimum:

- a) Information about the lifetime of the development, design storm period and intensity 1 in 30 & 1 in 100 year + allowance for climate change see EA advice Flood risk assessments: climate change allowances'), discharge rates and volumes (both pre and post development), temporary storage facilities, the methods employed to delay and control surface water discharged from the site, and the measures taken to prevent flooding and pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters, including watercourses, and details of floor levels in AOD;
- b) The drainage strategy should demonstrate that the surface water run-off must not exceed the pre-development greenfield runoff rate. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed.
- c) Any works required off-site to ensure adequate discharge of surface water without causing flooding or pollution (which should include refurbishment of existing culverts and headwalls or removal of unused culverts where relevant);
- d) Flood water exceedance routes, both on and off site;
- e) A timetable for implementation, including phasing as applicable;
- f) Evidence of an assessment of the site conditions to include site investigation and test results to confirm infiltrations rates;
- g) Details of water quality controls, where applicable.

The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of any of the approved buildings, or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Thereafter the drainage system shall be retained, managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage of/disposal of surface water from the site; to reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development, elsewhere and to future users and; to ensure that water quality is not detrimentally impacted by the development proposal.

15. No development shall commence until details of an appropriate management and maintenance plan for the sustainable drainage system for the lifetime of the development have been submitted which, as a minimum, shall include:

- a) The arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, management and maintenance by a Residents' Management Company
- b) Arrangements concerning appropriate funding mechanisms for its ongoing maintenance of all elements of the sustainable drainage system (including mechanical components) and will include elements such as:
  - i. on-going inspections relating to performance and asset condition assessments
  - ii. operation costs for regular maintenance, remedial works and irregular maintenance by less sustainable limited life assets or any other arrangements to secure the operation of the surface water drainage scheme throughout its lifetime;
- c) Means of access for maintenance and easements where applicable.

The plan shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of any of the approved dwellings, or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Thereafter the sustainable drainage system shall be managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure that appropriate and sufficient funding and maintenance mechanisms are put in place for the lifetime of the development; to reduce the flood risk to the development as a result of inadequate maintenance and; to identify the responsible organisation/body/company/undertaker for the sustainable drainage system.

16. Applications for the approval of reserved matters shall be accompanied by full details of the proposed surface water attenuation ponds and all other water bodies on site.

For the avoidance of doubt the submitted information shall include existing and proposed sections through each pond including relevant existing and proposed land levels and details of all associated landscaping and boundary treatments where applicable.

All attenuation basins and flow control devices/structures shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details and be operational prior to the commencement of any other development.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of visual amenity and to ensure the Local planning Authority can make an accurate assessment of the details relating to matters of flood risk and sustainable drainage in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

17. Surface water draining from areas of hardstanding shall be passed through an oil separator or series of oil separators, prior to being discharged into any watercourse, soakaway or surface water sewer. The separator(s) shall be designed and constructed to have a capacity compatible with the area being drained, shall be installed prior to the occupation of the development and shall thereafter be retained and maintained throughout the lifetime of the development. Clean roof water or vehicle washdowns and detergents shall not pass through the separator(s) and should be drained instead to foul sewer or sealed system.

REASON: To reduce the risk of pollution to the water environment in accordance with Core Strategy Policy DME6.

18. Prior to the commencement of any development, details of the foul drainage scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Foul shall be drained on a separate system. No building shall be occupied until the approved foul drainage scheme has been completed to serve the buildings, in accordance with the approved details. This development shall be completed, maintained and managed in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure satisfactory means of foul drainage in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

19. No development shall take place until a Construction Risk Assessment Method Statement (RAMS) for construction of the proposed development, is submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The statement shall outline the potential impacts from all construction activities on infrastructure that crosses the site and identify mitigation measures to protect and prevent any damage to this infrastructure. The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved RAMS.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory form of development and to afford appropriate protection of infrastructure that crosses the site.

20. As part of any reserved matters application and prior to the commencement of any site works including delivery of building materials and excavations for foundations or services, a detailed arboricultural assessment/tree constraints plan shall indicate how the existing trees have informed the detailed layout that has been submitted for reserved matters approval.

REASON: In order to ensure that any trees affected by development and considered to be of visual, historic or botanical value are afforded maximum physical protection from the potential adverse effects of development.

21. Prior to the commencement of development a detailed method statement for the removal or treatment and control of Japanese Knotweed on site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The method statement shall include details of proposed working methods to be adopted to prevent the spread of the species during any operation such as mowing, strimming or soil movement. It shall also contain measures to ensure that any soils brought to the site are free of the seeds/rot/stem of any invasive plant covered under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. Development shall proceed in accordance with the approved method statement.

REASON: To prevent the spread of non-native invasive species in the interests of protecting nature conservation issues in accordance with Policies DMG1, EN4 and DME3 of the Core Strategy.

22. Applications for the approval of reserved matters shall be accompanied by full details of the landscaping of the site, including wherever possible the retention of existing trees. The scheme shall reflect the landscape character of the area and therefore indicate on a detailed planting schedule appropriate species, types and density as well as their distribution on site.

The approved landscaping scheme shall be implemented in the first planting season following occupation or use of the development, whether in whole or part and shall be maintained thereafter for a period of not less than 5 years to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. This maintenance shall include the replacement of any tree or shrub which is removed, or dies, or is seriously damaged, or becomes seriously diseased, by a species of similar size to those originally planted.

REASON: To comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

23. The biodiversity mitigation measures as detailed in the ecological appraisal dated the  $10^{th}$  of October 2016 [7.1 – 8.1.6] shall be implemented in accordance with the recommendations and any specified time table. The development shall subsequently be implemented entirely in accordance with the approved details. Thereafter, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority, the mitigation measures shall be permanently maintained and retained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To protect the protected species/ species of conservation concern from damaging activities and reduce or remove the impact of development and to ensure that there are no adverse effects on the favourable status of a bat population before and during the proposed development.

24. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until details of the provisions to be made for building dependent species of conservation concern, artificial bird nesting boxes and artificial bat roosting sites have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the details shall be submitted on a building dependent bird/bat species site plan and include details of the numbers [there shall be at least 1 nest brick/bat tile per unit] across the development as a whole on north or east facing elevations. The details shall also identify the actual wall and roof elevations into which the above provisions shall be incorporated.

The artificial bird/bat boxes shall be incorporated into those individual units during the construction of those individual units identified on the submitted plan and be made available for use before each such building is occupied and thereafter retained. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting opportunities for species of conservation concern and protected species in accordance with Section 9 of the NPPF, and Key Statement EN4 and Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

25. The layout of the development shall include provisions to enable vehicles to enter and leave the highway in forward gear and such provisions shall be laid out in accordance with the approved plan (drwg no.T2267-H-01 (Proposed Access)) received 14 August 2017. The vehicular turning space shall be laid out and be available for use before the development is brought into use and maintained thereafter.

REASON: Vehicles reversing to and from the highway are a hazard to other road users.

26. The new estate road/access between the site and Blackburn Road shall be constructed in accordance with the Lancashire County Council Specification for Construction of Estate Roads to at least base course level before any development takes place within the site.

REASON: To ensure that satisfactory access is provided to the site before the development hereby permitted becomes operative.

27. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 there shall not at any time in connection with the development hereby permitted be erected or planted or allowed to remain upon the land hereinafter defined any building, wall, fence, hedge, tree, shrub or other device over 1m above road level. The visibility splay to be the subject of this condition shall be that land in front of a line drawn from a point 2.4m measured along the centre line of the proposed road from the continuation of the nearer edge of the carriageway of Blackburn Road to a point measured 153m in a westerly direction and 104m in an easterly direction along the nearer edge of the carriageway of Blackburn Road, from the centre line of the access and shall be constructed and maintained at footway/verge level in accordance with a scheme to be agreed by the Local Planning Authority in conjunction with the Highway Authority.

REASON: To ensure adequate visibility at the street junction or site access.

28. No part of the development hereby approved shall commence until a scheme for the construction of the site access and the off-site works of highway improvement has been submitted to, and approved by, the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority as part of a section 278 agreement, under the Highways Act 1980. For the avoidance of doubt the offsite works shall include

- a) Provision of pedestrian refuge and localised carriageway widening
- b) Signing and lining
- c) Junction re-alignment at Lower Road/Blackburn Road/Preston Road
- d) Extension of the street lighting provision on Blackburn Road

REASON: In order to satisfy the Local Planning Authority and Highway Authority that the final details of the highway scheme/works are acceptable before work commences on site and to enable all construction traffic to enter and leave the premises in a safe manner without causing a hazard to other road users.

29. No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied or opened for trading until the approved scheme referred to in Condition 4 has been constructed and completed in accordance with the scheme details.

REASON: In order that the traffic generated by the development does not exacerbate unsatisfactory highway conditions in advance of the completion of the highway scheme/works.

30. For the full period of construction, facilities shall be available on site for the cleaning of the wheels of vehicles leaving the site and such equipment shall be used as necessary to prevent mud and stones being carried onto the highway. The roads adjacent to the site shall be mechanically swept as required during the full construction period.

REASON: To prevent stones and mud being carried onto the public highway to the detriment of road safety.

- 31. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a construction method statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. It shall provide for:
  - a) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
  - b) The loading and unloading of plant and materials
  - c) The storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
  - d) The erection and maintenance of security hoarding
  - e) Details of working hours
  - f) HGV delivery times and routeing to/from the site
  - g) Contact details for the site manager

REASON: In the interests of protecting residential amenity from noise and disturbance and to ensure the safe operation of the Highway during the construction phase of the development in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

32. Cycling and motorbike parking facilities shall be provided in accordance with a scheme to be approved by the Local Planning Authority before the use of the premises hereby permitted becomes operative.

REASON: To allow for the effective use of the parking areas in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

#### **INFORMATIVES**

1. For the avoidance of doubt, this response does not grant the applicant permission to connect to the ordinary watercourse(s) and, once planning permission has been obtained, it does not mean that land drainage consent will be given.

The applicant should obtain Land Drainage Consent from Lancashire County Council **before** starting any works on site. Information on the application process and relevant forms can be found here: <u>http://new.lancashire.gov.uk/roads-parking-and-</u> <u>travel/roads/flooding/alterations-to-a-watercourse.aspx</u>

2. Materials and chemicals likely to cause pollution should be stored in appropriate containers and adhere to the guidance for the storage of drums and intermediate bulk containers (https://www.gov.uk/guidance/storing-oil-at-a-home-or-business).

Any facilities, above ground, for the storage of oils, fuels or chemicals shall be sited on impervious bases and surrounded by impervious bund walls. The volume of the bunded compound should be at least equivalent to the capacity of the tank plus 10%.

All filling points, vents, gauges and sight glasses must be located within the bund. The drainage system of the bund shall be sealed with no discharge to any watercourse, land or underground strata. Associated pipework should be located above ground and protected from accidental damage. All filling points and tank overflow pipe outlets should be detailed to discharge downwards into the bund.

Appropriate procedures, training and equipment should be provided for the site to adequately control and respond to any emergencies including the clean-up of spillages, to prevent environmental pollution from the site operations.

3. The grant of planning permission will require the applicant to enter into an appropriate Legal Agreement, with the County Council as Highway Authority. The Highway Authority hereby reserves the right to provide the highway works within the highway associated with this proposal. Provision of the highway works includes design, procurement of the work by contract and supervision of the works. The applicant should be advised to contact the contact the Environment Directorate for further information by telephoning the

Developer Support Section on 0300 123 6780, or email <u>lhscustomerservice@lancashire.gov.uk</u>

(Mr Love spoke in favour of the above application. Mr Gale, Hothersall Parish Council spoke against the above application. Councillor Ken Hind was given permission to speak on the above application).

(Councillor Rogerson returned to the meeting. Councillor Dowson declared an interest in the next item of business and left the meeting)

2. APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0323/P GRID REF: SD 365686 432179

#### **DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:**

RETENTION OF UNAUTHORISED CHANGE OF USE OF AN AGRICULTURAL BUILDING AND STORAGE CONTAINERS FOR THE OPERATION OF SCARE KINGDOM AT HAWKSHAW FARM, CLAYTON LE DALE, BB2 7JA

APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

1. This retrospective permission relates to the use of the agricultural storage building and the retention of a storage container as shown on the submitted plans Location Map 2 (scale 1:2500) and Site Plan (dwg ref. HF/SP).

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to define the development for which retrospective permission is hereby granted.

2. The Scare Kingdom attraction for which temporary permission is hereby granted shall be operated for a maximum of 41 days in any calendar year.

The first entry to the attraction shall be no sooner than 6pm. The last entry and the latest departure times shall be as follows:

- Weekdays last entry 9.30pm, latest departure 11pm.
- Weekdays during Halloween week last entry 10.30pm, latest departure 12 midnight.
- Fridays and Saturdays last entry 10.30pm, latest departure 12 midnight.
- Friday and Saturdays on the weekend closest to Halloween last entry 11.30pm, latest departure – 1am.
- All Sundays last entry 9.30pm, latest departure 11pm.

The applicants shall keep a written record of all days upon which the attraction is open and this shall be made available for inspection by the Local Planning Authority upon request.

REASON: To comply with the terms of application and in the interests of the amenities of nearby residents and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy Adopted Version.

3. Should the Local Planning Authority consider at any time that the operation of the Scare Kingdom events inside the buildings are resulting in an undue noise nuisance to nearby residents, then a scheme of acoustic insulation within the buildings, and a timescale for its implementation, shall be agreed between the applicant and the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In the interests of the amenities of nearby residents and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy (Adopted Version).

4. Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, the site shall be operated in strict accordance with the Visitor Management Plan submitted with the application. This shall include a requirement to erect temporary straw bale walls in accordance with the details shown on Annex 1 of the Visitor Management Plan to a height of 2.5-3m for the duration of all Scare Kingdom events.

REASON: To ensure the satisfactory management of the site in the interests of general amenity of the area and to safeguard where appropriate neighbouring residential amenity in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

5. No external lighting shall be installed at the site without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy (Adopted Version).

(Councillor Dowson returned to the meeting)

3. APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0495/P (LBC) GRID REF: SD 374247 441621

**DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION**:

RE-SLATING OF PITCHED ROOF AREA BEHIND PARAPET WALL AT CASTLE MUSEUM, CLITHEROE CASTLE, CASTLEGATE, CLITHEROE

GRANTED subject to the imposition of the following condition(s):

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

2. The permission shall relate to the development as shown on Plan Reference Roof-Plan Sheet 1.

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the submitted plans.

3. Precise specifications and samples of any replacement natural slates to be used including their colour and texture shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before their use in the proposed works.

REASON: In order to safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of the listed building.

4. Precise specifications of any works to the roof timber structure shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before its implementation in the proposed works.

REASON: In order to safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of the listed building.

5. This consent relates to the actions, methods & timing details included in the mitigation notes attached to the protected species survey (Ecology Services UK Limited, 13 June 2017). In the event that the building works are undertaken after summer 2017 or if any bats are found or disturbed during any part of the development, work shall cease until further advice has been sought from a licensed ecologist.

Mitigation refers to practices adopted to reduce or remove the risk of disturbance, injury or death of a protected species.

REASON: To protect the bat population from damaging activities and reduce or remove the impact of development. To ensure that there are no adverse effects on the favourable status of a bat population before and during the proposed development.

6. Bat roof access, access tile and lead saddle shall be incorporated into the roof ridge refurbishment in accordance with the details identified in the submitted ecology report (Ecology Services UK Limited, 13 June 2017).

REASON: To protect the bat population from damaging activities and reduce or remove the impact refurbishment. To ensure that there are no adverse effects on the favourable conservation status of a bat population before and during the proposed development.

4. APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0504 GRID REF: SD 374863 437669

## **DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:**

DEMOLITION OF EXISTING SINGLE STOREY DWELLING AND ERECTION OF REPLACEMENT TWO-STOREY DWELLING WITH DETACHED TRIPLE GARAGE AT WILLOW SPRING (NO. 58) PENDLETON ROAD, WISWELL APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with the requirements of section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

## Plans

2. Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the proposals as detailed on drawings:

Location Plan – 16182 (PL) 001 Proposed Block Plan – 16182 (PL) 004 D (amended plan received 27/06/17) Proposed Floor Plans – 16182 (PL) 005 C (amended plan received 31/07/17) Proposed Elevations – 16182 (PL) 006 C (amended plan received 14/08/17) Proposed Garage – 16182 (PL) 007 B (amended plan received 14/08/17) Proposed Cross Section – 16182 (PL) 008 Elevations Overlay– 16182 (PL) 009

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant to the consent.

## Materials

3. Notwithstanding any description of materials in the application and the requirements of condition 2 of this permission, samples or full details of all materials to be used on the external surfaces of the dwelling hereby approved shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to their use on site. Such details shall include the type, colour and texture of the materials. The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the duly approved materials.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the materials to be used are appropriate to the locality in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMH3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

4. Notwithstanding the submitted details, prior to the replacement dwelling hereby approved being occupied, details at a scale of not less than 1:20 of any new boundary walling, gates and fencing shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the detailed design of the proposal is appropriate to the locality in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMH3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

## Landscaping and trees

5. Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans and the requirements of condition 2 of this permission, within three months of development first taking place a landscaping scheme for the site (including elements of both 'hard' and 'soft' landscaping) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such a scheme shall include details of the proposed surface treatment of all hard surfaced areas and the type, species, siting, planting distances and programme of planting of any new and replacement trees and shrubs. The duly approved landscaping scheme shall be carried out within 12 months of the dwellinghouse first being occupied and the areas which are landscaped shall be retained as landscaped areas thereafter. Any trees or shrubs removed, dying, being severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased within three years of planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of similar size and species to those originally required to be planted.

REASON: In order to achieve a satisfactory level of landscaping and provision of adequate off-road parking facilities for the dwellinghouse in the interests of visual amenity and highway safety in accordance with the requirements of Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

6. Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, the trees and hedges shall be retained on site as shown on drawing 16182 (PL) 004 D (amended plan received 27/06/17) and no development shall take place until all the existing trees within, or directly adjacent, to the site (except those shown to be removed on the approved plans), have been enclosed with temporary protective fencing in accordance with BS 5837: 2012 Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction – Recommendations. The fencing shall be checked and verified on site by the Council's Countryside Officer prior to work commencing and the fencing shall be retained during the period of construction and no work, excavation, tipping, or stacking/storage of materials shall take place within such protective fencing during the construction period.

REASON: To protect the existing vegetation in the interest of visual amenity in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DME2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

## Permitted Development

7. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking, amending or re-enacting that Order) any future extensions and/or alterations to the dwelling including any development within the curtilage as defined in Schedule 2 Part 1 Classes A to H shall not be carried out without the formal written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise control over development which could materially harm the character and visual amenities

of the development and locality in accordance with the requirements of Policies DMG1 and DMH3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

8. The two full length bathroom windows in the rear (south) elevation of the dwellinghouse hereby approved shall be obscurely glazed to a minimum of level 3 on the Pilkington Scale (where 1 is the lowest and 5 the greatest level of obscurity) and shall be non-opening unless the parts of the window which can be opened are more than 1.7 metres above the floor level of the room in which the window is installed. The duly installed windows shall be retained as such thereafter.

REASON: To safeguard the privacy of occupiers of neighbouring dwellings and to ensure satisfactory levels of amenity for adjoining residents in accordance with the requirements of Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

9. No external lighting shall be installed on the replacement dwelling hereby approved, or elsewhere within the site, without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In order to ensure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of visual amenity and to prevent nuisance arising in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

## Ecology

10. No above ground works shall commence or be undertaken on site until details of the provisions to be made for building dependent species of conservation concern, artificial bird nesting boxes / artificial bat roosting sites have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the details shall identify the nature and type of the nesting boxes/artificial roosting sites and the locations(s) or wall and roof elevations into which the above provisions shall be incorporated.

The artificial bird/bat boxes shall be incorporated into the dwelling during the construction stage of the development and made available for use before the dwelling hereby approved is first occupied and thereafter retained. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting opportunities for species of conservation concern and reduce the impact of development in accordance with Policies DMG1 and EN4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

11. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in complete accordance with the measures detailed/recommended within Section 9

"Recommendations and Mitigation" section of the submitted Bat Survey undertaken by Envirotech.

REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting opportunities for species of conservation concern and reduce the impact of development in accordance with Policies DMG1 and EN4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

## Construction Works and Highways

12. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no building or engineering operations within the site or deliveries to and from the site shall take place other than between 07:30 hours and 18:00 hours Monday to Friday and between 08:30 hours and 14:00 hours on Saturdays, and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

REASON: In order to protect the amenities of existing residents in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

13. For the full period of construction, facilities shall be available on site for the cleaning of the wheels of vehicles leaving the site and such equipment shall be used as necessary to prevent mud and stones being carried onto the highway. The roads adjacent to the site shall be mechanically swept as required during the full construction period.

REASON: To prevent stones and mud being carried onto the public highway to the detriment of road safety in accordance with Polices DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

14. No part of the development hereby approved shall commence on site until a detailed scheme for the site access off Pendleton Road has been submitted to, and approved by, the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority. For the avoidance of doubt the submitted scheme should include details of visibility splays, surfacing and any gates that are proposed on the access. The duly approved scheme shall be constructed and completed in accordance with the approved details, prior to the access being utilised in conjunction with the development, including any demolition or construction works beginning on the replacement dwelling.

REASON: In order to satisfy the Local Planning Authority and Highway Authority that the final details of the highway scheme/works are acceptable before work commences on site in accordance with Polices DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

- 15. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a construction method statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. It shall provide for:
  - The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors

- The loading and unloading of plant and materials
- The storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
- The erection and maintenance of security hoarding
- Details of working hours
- HGV delivery times and routeing to / from the site
- Contact details for the site manager

REASON: To protect existing road users in the interest of highway safety in accordance with Ribble Valley Core Strategy Policies DMG1 and DMG3.

16. Notwithstanding the requirements of condition 5 of this approval, the car parking and manoeuvring areas shall be provided as shown on Drawing Number 16182 (PL) 004 D (amended plan received 27/06/17) prior to the first occupation of the replacement dwellinghouse hereby permitted, and shall be permanently maintained thereafter clear of any obstruction to their designated purpose.

REASON: To allow for the effective use of the parking areas in accordance with Ribble Valley Core Strategy Policies DMG1 and DMG3

## Drainage

17. The site shall be drained via separate systems for the disposal of foul and surface water.

REASON: To secure a satisfactory system of drainage and to prevent pollution of the water environment in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

## INFORMATIVE

1. If any evidence of bats is found at any time during works then works should cease immediately and advice sought from Natural England or a suitably qualified bat worker.

(Mrs Douglas spoke in favour of the above application. Mrs Oltowski spoke against the above application).

5. APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0620/P GRID REF: SD 360374 437337

## **DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:**

CHANGE OF USE OF EXISTING RVBC PLAY AREA TO FORM PART SINGLE-STOREY, PART TWO-STOREY EXTENSION TO THE REAR OF THE EXISTING MEDICAL CENTRE AT BERRY LANE MEDICAL CENTRE, BERRY LANE, LONGRIDGE PR3 3JJ (The Head of Planning Services asked Members to consider this in the context of planning merits only with no reference to the sale of the land).

APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

DR-A-01 05REV P1

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the proposals as detailed on drawings:

 Location Plan
 Existing and Proposed Site Plan
 DR-A-01\_03
 Site Plan
 S703-FWP-01\_02
 Existing and Proposed Elevations and Floor Plans

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant to the consent.

3. Only those external materials and surfacing materials as approved under condition 2 shall be used in the development.

REASON: To ensure that the appearance of the development is appropriate to the character of the building and setting of the area and comply with Policies DMG1 and DME4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy adopted version

- 4. No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. For the avoidance of doubt the submitted statement shall provide details of:
  - A. The location of parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
  - B. The location for the loading and unloading of plant and materials
  - C. The location of storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
  - D. The locations of security hoarding
  - E. The location and nature of wheel washing facilities to prevent mud and stones/debris being carried onto the Highway (For the avoidance of doubt such facilities shall remain in place for the duration of the construction phase of the development) and the timings/frequencies of mechanical sweeping of the adjacent roads/highway

- F. Periods when plant and materials trips should not be made to and from the site (mainly peak hours but the developer to identify times when trips of this nature should not be made)
- G. The highway routes of plant and material deliveries to and from the site.
- H. Measures to ensure that construction and delivery vehicles do not impede access to adjoining properties.
- I. Days and hours of operation for all construction works.

The approved statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period of the development.

REASON: In the interests of protecting residential amenity from noise and disturbance and to ensure the safe operation of the Highway in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

5. The car parking identified on the approved plans as referred to in condition 2 shall be appropriately surfaced or paved in accordance with the approved details. Unless otherwise agreed by the LPA the spaces shall be available for use before the development hereby approved is first brought into use.

REASON: In order to ensure a satisfactory design of the building and in the interests of highway safety and comply with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy adopted version.

6. Prior to occupation of the extension a car parking and traffic management plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the details so approved and retained thereafter unless agreed otherwise in writing with the Local Planning Authority. Any Travel Plan shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the development and implemented within an agreed time frame.

REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and highway safety and to comply with Policies DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy Adopted Version.

7 Prior to occupation of the extension a plan and scheme showing details of replacement recreational equipment and its management shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the details so approved and retained thereafter unless agreed otherwise in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to comply with Policies DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy Adopted Version.

6. APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0610 GRID REF: SD 374602 441669 DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

CHANGE OF USE OF EXISTING RVBC CAR PARK TO FORM EXTENSION TO EXISTING LIDL FOOD STORE INCLUDING 9 STAFF CAR PARKING PLACES

WITHDRAWN FROM THE AGENDA

7. APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0664 GRID REF: SD 362738 441027

**DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION**:

ERECTION OF A WORKING NURSERY AND SHOP AT LITTLE TOWN LAKES, LITTLE TOWN FARM, BEDLAM ROAD, THORNLEY, PR3 2TL.

WITHDRAWN FROM THE AGENDA

8. APPLICATION NO: 3/2017/0674/P GRID REF: SD 371966 446630

**DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:** 

DEMOLITION OF THE MOORCOCK INN AND ERECTION OF FOUR DWELLINGS INCLUDING ASSOCIATED DRIVES, GARDENS AND EXTERNAL LANDSCAPING WORKS. CREATION OF WORK FROM HOME OFFICE/STUDIO SPACE AT THE MOORCOCK INN, SLAIDBURN ROAD, WADDINGTON BB7 3AA

The Head of Planning Services reported that the Lead Local Authority on flooding had no objections.

MINDED TO APPROVE

(Councillor P Elms was given permission to speak on the above application).

9. APPLICATION NO: 3/2017/0133P GRID REF: SD 372502 435950

## **DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION**:

THE ERECTION OF 41 DWELLINGS AND ASSOCIATED WORKS AT LAND OFF DALE VIEW, BILLINGTON

The Head of Planning Services informed Members that on condition number 2 revised references would be made to up to date plans and that the Lead Local Flood Authority had withdrawn their objection regarding pipe dimensions.

DEFERRED and DELEGATED to the Director of Community Services for approval subject to the satisfactory completion of a Legal Agreement, within 3 months from the date of this Committee meeting or delegated to the Director of Community Services in conjunction with the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson of Planning and Development Committee should exceptional circumstances exist beyond the period of 3 months and subject to the following conditions:

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2. Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the proposals as detailed on drawings:

Location Plan 2414SK20-01B Proposed Site Layout (F) (received 22 August 2017) 2414-01-06 H1 – Split Level Detached Houses (Type 1) (Plans) 2414-01-07 H1 – Split Level Detached Houses (Type 1) (elevations & section) 2414-01-08 H2a – Extra Large Detached Houses (Type 2) (Ground Floor Plan) 2414-01-09 H2a - Extra Large Detached Houses (Type 2) (First & Second Floor Plans) 2414-01-10 H2a – Extra Large Detached Houses (Type 2) (elevations & section) 2414-01-11 H2b – Large Detached Houses (Type 3) (Ground Floor Plan) 2414-01-12 H2b – Large Detached Houses (Type 3) (First & Second Floor Plans) 2414-01-13 H2b – Large Detached Houses (Type 3) (elevations & section) 2414-01-16 B - Bungalows (Type 7) (Plans) 2414-01-17 B - Bungalows (Type 7)) (elevations & section) 2414.SK19-02 Type 4 - House 2414.SK19-03 Type 5 - House 2414.SK19-04 Type 6 - House 2414.SK19-05 Type 8 - Flat 2414.SK19-06 Type 8 - Flat nos. 24-27

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant to the consent.

3. Precise specifications or samples of walling and roofing materials and details of any surface materials to be used including their colour and texture shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before their use in the proposed works.

REASON: To ensure that the materials to be used are appropriate to the locality in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

4. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until details of the alignment, height and appearance of all boundary treatments, fencing, walling, retaining wall structures and gates to be erected within the development shall have been

submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. For the avoidance of doubt the submitted details shall include the precise nature and location for the provision of measures to maintain and enhance wildlife movement within and around the site by virtue of the inclusion of suitable sized gaps/corridors at ground level. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To comply with Key Statement EN4 and Policies DMG1, DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy, to ensure a satisfactory standard of appearance in the interests of the visual amenities of the area and to minimise the potential impacts of the development through the inclusion of measures to retain and enhance habitat connectivity for species of importance.

5. Prior to the commencement of development full details of existing and proposed ground levels and proposed building finished floor levels (all relative to ground levels adjoining the site) shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interest of visual and residential amenities and in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

6. Prior to the commencement of the development details of refuse/enclosed cycle storage provision for plots 22-33 shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall be implemented as part of the development and be made available for use prior to the aforementioned plots being first occupied.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the development provides adequate provision for the storage of domestic waste and encourages the use of sustainable means of transport in accordance with Key Statement DMI1 and Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

7. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or any Order revoking and reenacting that Order, the dwellings hereby permitted shall not be altered or extended, no new windows shall be inserted, no alterations to the roof shall be undertaken and no buildings or structures shall be erected within the curtilage of the dwellings hereby approved unless planning permission has first been granted by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise control over development which could materially harm the character and visual amenities of the development and locality in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DME2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy and could increase the rate of surface water run-off from the development. 8. Prior to the commencement of the development details of the design and position of the external meter boxes shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. For the avoidance of doubt the details shall indicate that no meter boxes will be located on the primary elevations of the proposed dwellings or on locations that that are afforded a high level of visibility upon the streetscene. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the detailed design of the proposal is appropriate to the locality and results in acceptable standard of appearance in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

9. Each dwelling, with the exception of those with communal parking facilities, shall incorporate provision to charge electric vehicles and a scheme to provide these facilities shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approval prior to any building work commencing on site. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To ensure that provision is made for electric powered cars and to support sustainable methods of travel in accordance with Key Statement DMI2 and Policy DMG3 of the Core Strategy.

10. For the full period of construction, facilities shall be available on site for the cleaning of the wheels of vehicles leaving the site and such equipment shall be used as necessary to prevent mud and stones being carried onto the highway. The roads adjacent to the site shall be mechanically swept as required during the full construction period.

REASON: To prevent stones and mud being carried onto the public highway to the detriment of road safety.

11. The new estate road/access between the site and Dale View shall be constructed in accordance with the Lancashire County Council Specification for Construction of Estate Roads to at least base course level before any development takes place within the site.

REASON: To ensure that satisfactory access is provided to the site before the development hereby permitted becomes operative.

12. No part of the development hereby approved shall commence until a scheme for the construction of the site access and the off-site works of highway improvement has been submitted to, and approved by, the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority as part of a section 278 agreement, under the Highways Act 1980.

REASON: In order to satisfy the Local Planning Authority and Highway Authority that the final details of the highway scheme/works are acceptable

before work commences on site and to enable all construction traffic to enter and leave the premises in a safe manner without causing a hazard to other road users.

13. No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until the approved scheme referred to in Condition 13 has been constructed and completed in accordance with the scheme details.

REASON: In order that the traffic generated by the development does not exacerbate unsatisfactory highway conditions in advance of the completion of the highway scheme/works.

14. The parking and garaging and associated manoeuvring facilities shown on the plans hereby approved shall be surfaced or paved, drained and marked out and made available in accordance with the approved plan prior to the occupation of any of the buildings; such parking facilities shall thereafter be permanently retained for that purpose (notwithstanding the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015).

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and to facilitate adequate vehicle parking and turning facilities to serve the site in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

15. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Development Procedure) Order 2015 and the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (Amendment) (No 2) (England) Order 2015, or any subsequent Orders or statutory provision re-enacting the provisions of these Orders, all garages shown on the approved plan shall be maintained as such and shall not be converted to or used for living accommodation without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority.

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and to facilitate adequate vehicle parking and/or turning facilities to serve the dwelling in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

- 16. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a construction method statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. It shall provide for:
  - a) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
  - b) The loading and unloading of plant and materials
  - c) The storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
  - d) The erection and maintenance of security hoarding
  - e) Details of working hours
  - f) HGV delivery times and routeing to / from the site
  - g) Contact details for the site manager

REASON: In the interests of protecting residential amenity from noise and disturbance and to ensure the safe operation of the Highway during the construction phase of the development in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

17. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until a scheme for the hard and soft landscaping of the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The scheme shall incorporate the recommendations of the Ecological Appraisal dated 15 August 2017 and shall indicate, as appropriate, the types and numbers of trees and shrubs, their distribution on site, those areas to be seeded, turfed, paved or hard landscaped, including details of any changes of level or landform and the types and specifications of all retaining structures (where applicable).

The approved soft landscaping scheme shall be implemented in the first planting season following occupation or use of the development unless otherwise required by the reports above, whether in whole or part and shall be maintained thereafter for a period of not less than 10 years to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. This maintenance shall include the replacement of any tree or shrub which is removed, or dies, or is seriously damaged, or becomes seriously diseased, by a species of similar size to those originally planted.

The hard landscaping shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of the development and retained thereafter at all times.

REASON: To ensure the proposal is satisfactorily landscaped and appropriate to the locality in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

18. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until a landscape management plan, including long-term design objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscape areas (other than small, privately owned, domestic gardens) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The landscape management plan shall be carried out as approved in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure the proper long-term management and maintenance of the landscaped areas in the interests of visual amenity and biodiversity enhancement, in accordance with Key Policy DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

19. Prior to commencement of any site works including delivery of building materials and excavations for foundations or services all trees to be retained

within the site shall be protected in accordance with the BS5837:2012 [Trees in Relation to Demolition, Design & Construction].

The protection zone must cover the entire branch spread of the trees, [the area of the root soil environment from the trunk to the edge of the branch spread] and shall remain in place until all building work has been completed and all excess materials have been removed from site including soil/spoil and rubble.

During the building works no excavations or changes in ground levels shall take place and no building materials/spoil/soil/rubble shall be stored or redistributed within the protection/exclusion zone, in addition no impermeable surfacing shall be constructed within the protection zone.

No tree surgery or pruning shall be implemented without prior written consent, which will only be granted when the local authority is satisfied that it is necessary is in accordance with BS3998 for tree work and carried out by an approved arboricultural contractor.

REASON: In order to ensure that any trees affected by development and considered to be of visual, historic or botanical value are afforded maximum physical protection from the potential adverse effects of development.

20. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the recommendations outlined in the submitted Ecological Appraisal dated 15 August 2017. The actions, methods & timings included in the mitigation measures identified shall be fully implemented.

REASON: To minimise the impact on ecology in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Core Strategy.

21. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until details of the provisions to be made for building dependent species of conservation concern, artificial bird nesting boxes and artificial bat roosting sites have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the details shall be submitted on a dwelling/building dependent bird/bat species site plan and include details of plot numbers and the numbers of artificial bird nesting boxes and artificial bat roosting site per individual dwelling and type. The details shall also identify the actual wall and roof elevations into which the above provisions shall be incorporated.

The artificial bird/bat boxes shall be incorporated into those individual dwellings during construction and be made available for use before each such dwelling is occupied and thereafter retained. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting opportunities for species of conservation concern and protected species in accordance with Section 9 of the NPPF, and Key Statement EN4 and Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

22. The drainage for the development hereby approved, shall be carried out in accordance with principles set out in the submitted Flood Risk Assessment Ref No. 3073 (rev.5) dated August 2017 which was prepared by Scott Hughes. No surface water will be permitted to drain directly or indirectly into the public foul or combined sewer. Any variation to the discharge of foul shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development. The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory form of development and to prevent an undue increase in surface water run-off and to reduce the risk of flooding.

23. No development shall commence until details of the design, based on sustainable drainage principles, and implementation of an appropriate surface water sustainable drainage scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

Those details shall include, as a minimum:

- a) Information about the lifetime of the development, design storm period and intensity 1 in 30 & 1 in 100 year + allowance for climate change see EA advice Flood risk assessments: climate change allowances'), discharge rates and volumes (both pre and post development), temporary storage facilities, the methods employed to delay and control surface water discharged from the site, and the measures taken to prevent flooding and pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters, including watercourses, and details of floor levels in AOD;
- b) The drainage strategy should demonstrate that the surface water run-off must not exceed the pre-development greenfield runoff rate. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed.
- c) Any works required off-site to ensure adequate discharge of surface water without causing flooding or pollution (which should include refurbishment of existing culverts and headwalls or removal of unused culverts where relevant);
- d) Flood water exceedance routes, both on and off site;
- e) A timetable for implementation, including phasing as applicable;
- f) Evidence of an assessment of the site conditions to include site investigation and test results to confirm infiltrations rates;
- g) Details of water quality controls, where applicable.

The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of any of the approved buildings, or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Thereafter the drainage system shall be retained, managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage of/disposal of surface water from the site; to reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development, elsewhere and to future users and; to ensure that water quality is not detrimentally impacted by the development proposal.

- 24. No development shall commence until details of an appropriate management and maintenance plan for the sustainable drainage system for the lifetime of the development have been submitted which, as a minimum, shall include:
  - a) The arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, management and maintenance by a Residents' Management Company
  - b) Arrangements concerning appropriate funding mechanisms for its ongoing maintenance of all elements of the sustainable drainage system (including mechanical components) and will include elements such as:
    - i. on-going inspections relating to performance and asset condition assessments
    - ii. operation costs for regular maintenance, remedial works and irregular maintenance by less sustainable limited life assets or any other arrangements to secure the operation of the surface water drainage scheme throughout its lifetime;
  - c) Means of access for maintenance and easements where applicable.

The plan shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of any of the approved dwellings, or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Thereafter the sustainable drainage system shall be managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure that appropriate and sufficient funding and maintenance mechanisms are put in place for the lifetime of the development; to reduce the flood risk to the development as a result of inadequate maintenance and; to identify the responsible organisation/body/company/undertaker for the sustainable drainage system.

#### NOTES:

- 1. The grant of planning permission does not entitle a developer to obstruct a right of way and any proposed stopping-up or diversion of a right of way should be the subject of an Order under the appropriate Act.
- 2. The grant of planning permission will require the applicant to enter into an appropriate Legal Agreement, with the County Council as Highway Authority. The Highway Authority hereby reserves the right to provide the highway works within the highway associated with this proposal. Provision of the highway works includes design, procurement of the work by contract and supervision of the works. The applicant should be advised to contact the contact the Environment Directorate for further information by telephoning the Developer Support Section (Area East) on 0300 123 6780.

3. United Utilities owns a parcel of land which is affected by the proposed development and a formal easement under UU Ref Z4432 dated 7/10/15 which has been granted in perpetuity. Under no circumstances should anything be planted or erected or any materials stored over the easements nor should anything occur that would affect the integrity of the pipe or United Utilities right to 24hr access.

It is the applicant's responsibility to demonstrate the exact relationship between any United Utilities' assets and the proposed development. United Utilities offers a fully supported mapping service and we recommend the applicant contact our Property Searches Team at <u>Property.Searches@uuplc.co.uk</u> to obtain maps of the site.

4. Sustainable drainage systems under the adoptable highway will only be considered acceptable where they are adopted by United Utilities or they only retain highway surface water.

The applicant is also advised that the adoptable highway surface water drainage system must not be used for the attenuation of any flood waters from the adoptable United Utility surface water system or any private surface water drainage system etc.

The applicant is advised to begin early discussions between the section 38 officers at Lancashire County Council, the Lead Local Flood Authority at Lancashire County Council and United Utilities as advised in the Department of Transport Advice Note "Highway Adoptions" "The adoption of roads into the public highway (1980 Highways Act)", published in April 2017.

5. For the avoidance of doubt, this response does not grant the applicant permission to connect to the ordinary watercourse(s) and, once planning permission has been obtained, it does not mean that land drainage consent will be given.

The applicant should obtain Land Drainage Consent from Lancashire County Council before starting any works on site. Information on the application process and relevant forms can be found here: <u>http://new.lancashire.gov.uk/roads-parking-and-</u> <u>ravel/roads/flooding/alterations-to-a-watercourse.aspx</u>.

(Mr Matta spoke in favour of the above application. Mr Austin, Billington Parish Council spoke against the above application).

## 191 SECTION 106 APPLICATIONS

<u>Plan No</u>	Location		<u>Date to</u> Committee	<u>Number</u> <u>of</u> Dwellings	<u>Progress</u>
3/2016/0974	Land West Preston Road Longridge	of	16/2/17	275	With Planning

# 192 APPLICATIONS WITHDRAWN

Plan No	Proposal	Location
3/2015/0289	Application for outline planning permission for the erection of one detached dwelling including access and layout	Land off Bentlea Road Gisburn
3/2015/0902	Demolition of existing lean-to porch and construction of new porch to front of house. Single storey extension rear	Hillcrest Cottage 21 Abbott Brow Mellor, BB2 7HT
3/2016/0753	Variation of condition 2 (approved drawing numbers) of planning permission 3/2016/0040 to allow change of main entrance to sliding doors and relocate to south elevation with a cantilevered canopy above, repositioning of two areas of glazing to the west elevation, introduction of pressed-metal capping to the heads of the brickwork walls	Fort Vale Engineering Ltd Calder Vale Park Simonstone BB12 7ND
3/2017/0052	Lift existing flat floor in front room. Remove 220mm depth of soil and install sublime limecrete floor to manufacturers specification	22 King Street Whalley BB7 9SL
3/2017/0190	Amend to application 3/2013/0851 for development of The Whins. The amendment is for full planning approval for the addition of 2 semi- detached buildings consisting of 4, 3 bed houses (of these 1 is a replacement of 1 approved 5 bed detached house currently listed as Plot 8)	Plot 8 The Whins Whins Lane Read BB12 7QY
3/2017/0292	Conversion of brick barn to one dwelling, creation of curtilage with access and parking and installation of package treatment plant	Barn 1 Wheatley Farm Four Acre Lane Longridge, PR3 2TD
3/2017/0534	Variation of condition 2 (to include a roof terrace) of planning permission 3/2014/1018 for demolition of existing buildings and erection of 33 units of retirement living housing (Category II type accommodation) communal facilities, landscaping and car parking	Barnacre Road Longridge PR3 2PD
3/2017/0598	Removal of conditions 12 (letting restrictions and register), 13 (restriction to holiday use) and 14 (restriction of business to Keepers Cottage) from planning permission 3/2016/1294	Keepers Cottage Northcote Road Langho BB6 8BD

# 193 APPEALS UPDATE

Application <u>No and</u> reason for appeal	<u>Date</u> <u>Received/</u> <u>Appeal</u> <u>Start Date</u>	<u>Site Address</u>	<u>Type of</u> <u>Appeal</u> <u>Procedure</u>	<u>Date of</u> Inquiry/ Hearing if Applicable	<u>Progress</u>
3/2015/0393 R	10/08/16	Land west of Preston Road Longridge (Grimbaldeston Fm)	Inquiry	In abeyance	Bespoke timetable
3/2017/0088 R	03/07/17	1 & 2 Abbeycroft The Sands, Whalley	WR		Awaiting Decision
3/2017/0039 R	07/08/17	18 Netherwood Gdns Brockhall Village Langho	HH		Awaiting Decision
3/2017/0272 R	08/06/17	Ribble View Barn Alston Lane Longridge	WR		Awaiting Decision
3/2016/1196 R	03/07/17	Lower Standen Fm Whalley Road Pendleton	WR		Awaiting Decision
3/2016/0708 R	10/07/17	The Dog & Partridge Tosside	Hearing	05/09/17	Statement due 14/08/17
3/2016/0709 R	10/07/17	The Dog & Partridge Tosside	Hearing	05/09/17	Statement due 14/08/17
3/2017/0029 R	24/07/17	Field at Hellifield Road, Gisburn	WR		Statement due 28/08/17
3/2017/0045 R	Awaiting start date from PINS	Newton Hall Newton in Bowland	WR (to be confirmed)		
3/2016/1202 R	17/08/17	Barn within the grounds of Greengore Farm	WR		Statement due 21/09/17
3/2017/0192 R	19/07/17	Countess Hey Elmridge Lane Chipping	WR		Statement due 23/08/17
3/2017/0308 R	10/08/17	Fields Farm Barn Back Lane Chipping	HH		Awaiting Decision
3/2017/0220 R	07/08/17	2a Whittingham Rd Longridge	WR		Statement due 11/09/17
Enforcement	Awaiting start date from PINS	Demesne Farm Newsholme Gisburn	Hearing (to be confirmed)		
3/2017/0441 R	Awaiting start date from PINS	19 Woodfield View Whalley	WR (to be confirmed)		
3/2017/0595 R	Awaiting start date from PINS	St Mary's Community Centre Church Street Clitheroe	WR (to be confirmed)		

## 194 LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK – AUTHORITY MONITORING REPORT 2016/17

The Chief Executive submitted a report reviewing information on the Authority Monitoring Report. Monitoring is essential in order to establish whether the Council is succeeding in promoting and managing the future development of Ribble Valley. The report covers information on the environment, housing, the economy, delivery mechanisms and infrastructure, the strategic site and development management policies. The report covers the period from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017. The Council would continue to monitor on an annual basis with a new comprehensive monitoring framework formulated as part of the forthcoming local plan review.

- RESOLVED: That the report be noted.
- 195 REVENUE OUTTURN 2016/2017

The Director of Resources submitted a report for Committee's information on the outturn for the financial year 2016/2017 in respect of the revenue budget for this Committee.

There had been a number of variations in both income and expenditure during the year that had given rise to an overall underspending of £127,693 on the net cost of services after transfers to and from earmarked reserves the overall underspend is £55,099.

- RESOLVED: That the report be noted.
- 196REVENUE MONITORING 2017/2018

The Director of Resources submitted a report informing Committee of the position for the first four months of this year's revenue budget as far as this Committee was concerned. A comparison between actual and budgeted expenditure was shown along with the main reasons for the variances.

- RESOLVED: That the report be noted.
- 197 CAPITAL MONITORING 2017/2018

The Director of Resources submitted a report informing Members of progress on the approved 2017/2018 Planning and Development Committee Capital Programme for the period to the end of July 2017. To date there had been no spend on the introduction of the planning portal link to the planning application system and planning system update scheme, although some progress had been made.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

#### 198 2016/2017 YEAR END PERFORMANCE MONITORING

The Director of Resources submitted a report for Members' information on the year-end details of performance against our local performance indicators.

- RESOLVED: That the report be noted.
- 199 APPEALS NONE

# 200 REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES

There were no reports from Representatives on Outside Bodies.

The meeting closed at 8.14pm.

If you have any queries on these minutes please contact John Heap (414461).